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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

2 FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
3
4
5 Respondent: Mark Green for Congress and Richard Johnson, MUR: 5826
6 in his official capacity as treasurer
7 Mark Green
8
9
10 L BACKGROUND
i1 This matter involves the transfer of approximately $1.29 million from Mark Green for

12 Congress (the “Federal Committee™), the principal campaign committee of former Rep. Mark

13 Green, to his state gubematorial campaign committee, Green for Wisconsin (the “State

14 Committee™) in January 2005. The complainant, the Wisconsin Democracy Campaign Education
15 Project, alleges that the funds received by the State Committee from the Federal Committee were
16  subject to and in violation of Wisconsin state contribution limits. The complainant further

17 alleges that, because the transfer was impermissible under Wisconsin law, the Federal Committee
18 violated 2 U.S.C. § 439a(a) of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, (the

19 “Act” or “FECA”), which permits contributions accepted by a candidate to be used by the

20  candidate for donations to State and local candidates subject to the provisions of State law.

21 IL.  FACTUAL INFORMATION

22 Mark Green represented Wisconsin’s 8th District as a United States Congressman from

23 199910 2007. On May 1, 2005, he formally announced his intention to tun for Governor of

24  Wisconsin in 2006. Before this announcement, on January 25, 2005, the Federal Committee

25  transferred $1,285,973.70 to the State Committee.’

'On January 3, 2006, the Federal Committee was terminated pursuant to 2 U.S.C. § 433(d) and 11 CF.R. § 102.3.
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Factual and Legal Analysis

At the time the transfer was made, Wisconsin law permitted transfers from federal
political committees to state campaign committees.” On the following day, however, the
Wisconsin State Elections Board (“Elections Board”) promulgated an Emergency Rule that
retroactively invalidated part of the transfer, and in a later Order, required the State Committee to
divest itself of approximately $468,000 of the transferred funds.” In response, the State
Committee and Mark Green filed suit in Wisconsin state court challenging the constitutionality
of the Order and the Emergency Rule and seeking an injunction. When this request was denied,
Green and the State Committee filed an original jurisdiction suit in the Wisconsin Supreme
Court. The Supreme Court had not decided the case as of the date of this Report.*

The complaint alleges that the transfer violated 2 U.S.C. § 439a(a) because state law only

permitted contributions from political committees to a candidate for Governor in amounts up to

% The transfer was made pursuant to Wisconsin Administrative Code § EIBd 1.39 (2004) and upon receiving the
transferred funds, the State Committee filed a timely and complete disclosure report with the Wisconsin State
Elections Board.

3 The Emergency Rule disallowed transfers from a federal committee to a Wisconsin state committee if the money
transferred could not have been given directly to the state committee under Wisconsin law. Emergency Rule EIBd
1.395; see also Cary Spivak & Dan Bice, A Political Emergency, at Least, MILWAUKEE JOURNAL SENTINEL, January
27,2005, at A2. Under Wisconsin state law, a state committee may only accept up to $485,190 from PACs
registered in Wisconsin and may not accept any contributions from PACs not registered in Wisconsin. The Elections
Board therefore ordered Green for Wisconsin to divest itself “of all amounts received from PACs that were not
registered in Wisconsin,” (totaling $467,844.60) and of “‘all PAC money received in excess of the PAC limit of
$485,190 including amounts received from the federal campaign fund.” September 6, 2006 Order.

* On October 31, 2006, the Supreme Court issued an opinion in which it declined to decide the case prior to the
November election, and asked a reserve judge to clarify issues of law and fact for subsequent bricfing by the parties.
Green v. State Elections Bd., 723 N.W.2d 418, 419 (Wis. 2006). Further briefing by the parties is scheduled to be
completed by March 26, 2607. Wisconsin Supreme Court and Court of Appeals Case Access, Green for Wisconsin
v. State of Wisconsin Elections Board, http://wscca. wicourts.gov/appealHistory. xs],Jsessxomd—’IFSE30D0BA43B0
654EECO0DD4F1CD52B 2caseNo=2006AP002452 (last visited February 20, 2007).
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Mark Green for Congress &t al.
Factual and Legal Analysis

$43,128, and, therefore, all amounts above this limit violated state law.’ Alfhough the
respondents have not filed a response, court filings indicate that respondents believed that the
transfer was explicitly permitted under Wisconsin law, and, thus, that it complied with Section
439a(a)(5).
1. LEGAL ANALYSIS

The threshold issue in this matter is whether the clause “subject to the provisions of State
law” in Section 439a(a)(5) should be read to prohibit a federal-to-state transfer if that transfer
violates state law, or whether the clause merely makes clear that state law is not preempted in
this context. For three principal reasons, we believe that the clause signifies the latter and that a
violation of state law does not create a violation of Section 439a(a)(5). First, Section 439a(a)(5)
is permissive, particularly when compared to the prohibitions contained in Section 439a(b) and
the qualified campaign expense provisions of 11 CF.R. § 9002.11(a). Second, consistent with
the Commission’s Advisory Opinions, the “subject to. .State law” clause serves merely to advise
a transferor that state law is not preempted with respect to federal-to-state transfers. Third, states

are uniquely situated to address violations of their own laws and can adequately do so here.

* The Elections Board, in its Orders and in the ensuing litigation, only challenges the amounts transferred by the
Federal Committee that derived from PACs that were not registered in Wiscansin, or $467,844.60, and total PAC
contributions, an unstipulated amount. The precise grounds for violation in the Order are thus different from those
alleged by the complainant, though each alleges a violation of state law.
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